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After a number of months, the City rejected this new plan, again claiming it could not commit to
annexation even if it was deferred for a number of years.

This left LAFCo with no choice but to follow the requirements of G.C. 56133 and require
that LAFCo approval be obtained for each sewer connection outside the City boundaries. Even
here, LAFCo tried to further facilitate the process by adopting a flat $600 fee, significantly below
the actual staff cost of processing the applications.

To facilitate the connection process and keep track of the extensions for future
annexation consideration, LAFCo staff commenced working with City staff to determine what
sewer connections existed outside the City boundaries. It was a considerable surprise to
LAFCo staff when, through this process, it became clear that numerous sewer connections had
occurred without seeking LAFCo approval. This necessitated substantial additional work to
determine, identify and map each such illegal connection.

It should be kept in mind that the City allowed these connections in violation of state law,
and after LAFCo had sent senior City staff several letters specifically reminding them of the
requirement to obtain LAFCo approval before allowing the connections. The City also coliected
its sewer connection fees while now arguing against LAFCO collecting its fees. Had the City
followed the law, each of these parcels would have been processed by LAFCo and the actual
cost of processing would have been charged and paid by the City. For those 49 connections
that occurred before the Commission adopted a fiat fee, the cost would have, on average, run
about $2,200 per connection application. For those 13 connections after the flat fee was
adopted, the cost would have been $600 per application, for a total cost of $115,600 LAFCo is
actually now asking for far less than what would have been charged. Many agencies, including
the City of Chico itself, charge substantially more for permits to correct violations.

With respect to the $17,606 of LAFCo staff charges, that cost was incurred by LAFCo
staff to discover and analyze the illegal connections. That is a cost directly and reasonably the
result of the City's negligence in allowing the illegal connections. Likewise the cost of
processing the applications is a real cost to LAFCo. You are asking LAFCo to absorb most of
those costs. In essence you are asking LAFCo to shift much of the cost of the City’s negligent
acts on to all of the other agencies that support LAFCo. We believe that would be bad policy
and a very bad precedent. It would give Chico special treatment, and relieve the City of the cost
and consequence of its actions. It would indicate to ali other Butte County agencies that there
are likely to be no serious consequences from violating LAFCo law.

Butte LAFCo has maintained a long-standing policy to minimize required agency
contributions to the operation of LAFCo by charging those who seek LAFCo action for the cost
of processing their applications. We have rarely waived fees in the past, and usually only when
there is a strong public interest in LAFCo facilitating the reorganization. If we waive or reduce
charges for Chico simply because the City is suffering financial difficulties, we open the door to
similar requests from every applicant.

Butte LAFCo must also reject your request to waive our policy requiring annexation of
properties requiring sewer that are contiguous to City boundaries. Such a waiver would be
contrary to LAFCo's basic mission to promote logical boundaries, orderly development and
efficient delivery of services. The City will need to apply to annex the 26 parcels that have
received sewer that are contiguous to the City. It will also need to agree to pay the cost of
processing such annexations. LAFCo is willing, however, to aliow a single application for all of
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the properties which should reduce the cost somewhat. The Commission’s ultimate goal is to
have all of these islands annexed to the City. Therefore as an alternative to piecemeal
connection approval and annexation, the Commission renews its previous offer to enter into an
agreement with the City to provide for the annexation of the islands. The agreement would
impose a binding obligation on the City to complete island annexations over a period of time.
This would spread the completion of the annexations over time and allow the City to plan for the
extension of services to those areas. Costs for processing these island annexations is likely to
be much less costly than the alternative of individual connection and annexation approvals.
Considering the outcome of the recently completed Final Report of the Chapman, Mulberry, and
Stewart Avenue Annexation Study for Butte County/City of Chico, it appears the fiscal burden to
the City of a comprehensive annexation effort is essentially neutral leaving little reason not to
proceed with such an effort.

In order that we are perfectly clear, on what we expect and when, the Commission
provides the following direction and specific timelfine for achieving compliance as follows:

Alternative 1 (preferred) - Agreement for Annexation of Entire Islands

If the City desires to enter into a binding master annexation agreement to include a
comprehensive extension of services authorization, it must notify LAFCo in writing by January
3, 2014. The City of Chico has untii March 5, 2014, to negotiate and complete a master
annexation agreement that is acceptable to Butte LAFCo. A prior draft was given to the City in
July 2012 and presumably the City is therefore already familiar with some of the basic concepts
in that prior annexation agreement form. The agreement, at a minimum, shall require the City
Council to initiate the immediate annexation of the Chapman, Mulberry, Forest Avenue and the
East Lassen Avenue unincorporated area islands utilizing the island annexation provisions of
the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 (California
Government Code §56375.3). The effective dates of annexation of each area are negotiable
within legal limits and will be identified in the binding master annexation and sewer extension
agreement. Failure of the City of Chico to accept the terms in Alternative 1 and promptly notify
LAFCo writing by January 3, 2014, will result Alternative 2 below becoming effective.

Alternative 2 - Extension Approval and Annexation for lllegal Connections

If the City does not notify LAFCo in writing by January 3, 2014 of its intention to negotiate and
complete a master annexation and sewer extension agreement that is acceptable to Butte
LAFCo, or it prefers to simply address the illegal connections, we require the following:

2-1. The City of Chico shall submit a single, comprehensive, and complete Butte LAFCo
Extension of Services application for the 62 unincorporated parcels that have been
connected to the City of Chico’s sanitary sewer system without LAFCo authorization.
An application processing fee of $37,200.00 shall be submitted with the application
(fee is based on Butte LAFCo's current reduced Extension of Services application
processing fee of $600.00 for parcels within the boundaries of the Chico Urban Area
Nitrate Compliance Program; 62 parcels x $600.00 = $37,200.00). The signed and
completed Extension of Services application, along with the application processing fee,
shall be submitted to Butte LAFCo by the close of business on February 3, 2014.

2-2. The City of Chico shall initiate an annexation of the 26 parcels with unauthorized
sewer connections that are contiguous to City of Chico jurisdictional boundaries as are
identified in the table on Exhibit A, and shown on Exhibits B through E, of the LAFCo
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December 5, 2013 staff report. Prior to April 1, 2014, the City of Chico shall submit to
Butte LAFCo a single, comprehensive, and complete Butte LAFCo annexation
application for the 26 contiguous parcels. The annexation application processing fee
shall be on a full cost recovery basis, with an initial deposit of $10,000 submitted with
the annexation application; and

2-3. As part of the cost of processing the above applications, the City of Chico shall also
reimburse Butte LAFCo $17,606 for LAFCo staff's time working on the unauthorized
sewer connections issue. The reimbursement shall be received by Butte LAFCo prior
to February 3, 2014.

Please understand that this is not an invitation for further negotiation except on very limited
issues. If the City fails to meet the deadlines for one or the other alternative, LAFCo will have to
consider legal action to compel compliance. If we have to do so, the cost to the City could be
much more than what is proposed above and the court would require application to comply in
any event.

We do not want to do this and fully expect the City to act promptly to correct the
violations. Please advise us no later than Friday, January 3, 2013, how the City desires to
proceed. Should you have any questions concerning this matter, please contact our Executive
Officer, Stephen Lucas at 538-6819 or via email at slucas@buttecounty.net.

Sincerely,

(& = gt
Carl'téverenz, Chair
Butte Local Agency Formation Commission

g City of Chico City Council
LAFCo Commissioners
Scott Browne, LAFCo Counsel
Paul Hahn, Butte County CAO
Jennifer McCarthy, Butte County



